PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, September 16, 2025
6:00 p.m. - Hybrid Meeting - Conference Room

Zoom Link
Planning Commission Agenda and Documents — September 16, 2025

Meeting ID: 952 4752 2778
Passcode: 365966

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Terry Carter, Chair Ron Silvestri Ted Stryhas

Judy Pullinen Jean Strong Noah Schmidt — Select Board Rep.
STAFF PRESENT:

Lisha Klaiber Jarrod Jowdy Charlotte Galley
OTHERS PRESENT:

Eric Alden Martha Harrison

Jill Appell Logan Nicoll

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Terry Carter, Chair called the meeting at 6:01 p.m.

I1I. ROLL CALL BY RECORDING SECRETARY

1. All members present, except Ryan Silvestri

III. OPENING STATEMENT BY CHAIR

1. Terry Carter said that she has no comments this evening.

IV. CONSIDERATIONS OF ANY CHANGES, ADDITIONS OR REMOVAL TO THE AGENDA

1. Terry Carter said there are none.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - June 24, 2025 and August 19, 2025



PLANNING COMMISSION September 16, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

Minutes — June 24, 2025
a) Terry Carter noted that Item VIII, #43, should read “Terry Carter said that they need to come
up with goals...”

b) MOTION by Jean Strong and seconded by Judy Pullinen to approve the minutes from
June 24, 2025 as corrected. Motion passed unanimously.

Minutes - August 19, 2025
a) Terry Carter noted that Item IX, #5, should read “Terry Carter said that the Trustees agreed to
do a Traffic Study after the paving...”

b) MOTION by Jean Strong and seconded by Judy Pullinen to approve the minutes from
August 19, 2025 as corrected. Motion passed: Ryan Silvestri abstained.

VI. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS

Jarrod Jowdy said that for Item 9 on the agenda, some buildings may be changing hands and
currently have no parking spaces, but are mixed use. They may not be able to get a permit for
renovations. Will it be possible to get a variance to allow changes without parking? If you focus
on Neighborhood Development, with Fire Marshal approval, they may build up to 4 stories, but
because of parking requirements, they may be unable to move forward. Will there be any new
regulations to allow them to use town parking for development?

Terry Carter said she thinks that the Brewfest parking area allows overnight parking

Noah Schmidt said he thinks people could park there. He said that the unknowns about parking
are limiting for developers. Have they considered residential parking permits for the Municipal
parking lot?

Ryan Silvestri said if the Town of Ludlow wants more parking, they have to buy property. He
said the Municipal parking lot is a leased property. There is also the Ellison building.

Jarrod Jowdy said that would be a great spot for a parking garage and it would be reducing
impervious surfaces

Noah Schmidt said with current zoning, half of the buildings on Main Street would not be
allowed to exist as they are.

Eric Alden said that overnight parking is not allowed at the Brewfest lot, unless for a special
event.

VII. ESTABLISHING A HOUSING COMMISSION AND HOW TO PLAN A DESIGN
CHARETTE

N —

With Julie Hance and Preston Bristow from Chester, Al Keiller and Jill Appell from West
Windsor and Chuck Wise from Springfield will be joining us in October

Terry Carter introduced Jill Appell from West Windsor.

Jill Appell said that West Windsor started the process with an Affordable Home Study. They are
a small community and half of the homes are second homes. The town owns Ascutney. They
received some of the ARPA funds and MARC did a housing snapshot. They have a declining
school population. They started with a Community Forum and 100 people attended. She said the



PLANNING COMMISSION September 16, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

1.
12.
13.

Town owns one 4-acre parcel. The goal was to get community input, identify possible locations,
look at the infrastructure and look for donations (including land.) They did receive land
donations and 21 possible sites were identified. The town does not have money. Beginning July
Ist, they started a STR and received $20,000. She said that hosted properties do get a

break. They will be holding a second Community Form on Saturday, September 27th from 10:00
a.m. until 12:00 p.m. at the West Windsor Town Hall. She invited plc members to attend. She
said that they have 4 sites that they are looking to develop. She said the Windham/Windsor
Housing Trust is interested in one location. She said West Windsor has to process the
transactions for donated lands. They have not formed a Housing Committee. She said that she
and Al Keiller are basically running this. They also have to form a Housing Reserve Fund. They
are using Chester’s as a format. The town has to allocate funds in the budget for a Housing
Reserve Fund. They are also using Chester’s Housing Commission description as a basis for West
Windsor’s. If the community is interested in Housing, you should form a commission. Chester’s
Housing Commission has 7 to 9 members and is multidisciplinary. She said that they decided not
to do a charrette. They designated sites, chosen based on priority and crafted an RFP. They
received 4 proposals and chose Banwell Architects from Lebanon. They focus on practical

stuff. You will need an engineering consultant to look at the environment, topography, and storm
water management. The contract with Banwell was $43,000 and we received $29,000 from the
ARPA funds. We also received a Municipal Planning Grant for $30,000. The home study end
date is September 27th. We also are looking at renovations.

Ryan Silvestri said the town puts money toward the soft costs. He said that the town of Dorset
owns property and has 40 lots. They have put in new roads, built a new town hall. The lots are
for Affordable Housing. He said that the town has to initiate development. He said the new town
hall was Phase I. They get funds from fund raising, but without the municipality starting, nothing
gets done. OR. partner with surrounding towns.

Jill Appell said that West Windsor has received great community support. She said that Chester
just initiated a new fund-raising campaign for Affordable Housing. She said the most
complicated part is finances. She said that the Orange Lake resort at Ascutney wants to raze and
relocate its pool/fitness center. When demolished, West Windsor wants to build a 25-unit
apartment building and we may ask them to donate the 2-acre parcel. She said that you have to
form a Housing Commission, start fund raising, the town has to be involved and you need
community support. She said that regarding the charette, asking people what house styles they
want is not relevant.

Ryan Silvestri said that the projects in Dorset are mixed type uses: 55 and older, assisted living,
and middle income. He said that Dorset’s Town Manager, Rob Gaiotti is spear heading their
process and is heavy into fund raising,

Jill Appell said West Windsor defined housing, including the “missing middle.” You have to
have some units at market rate and there has to be mixed income.

Judy Pullinen asked about advice about financials and taxes exemptions

Jill Appell said the Planning Commission will probably approve a Housing Fund and it is clearly
tax deductible. She suggested they ask Dorset how they raised funds.

Terry Carter asked how they got 100 people to attend the forum?

. Jill Appell said they advertised in the Vermont Standard, Front Porch Form and posters in front of

Town Hall. They held it on February 1st - a Saturday morning.

Ryan Silvestri said you need to make it a Community deal.

Noah Schmidt said sometimes it’s always the same people and they get burnt out

Jill Appell said that she is more of a project management type person. She said the Chester
Housing Commission has 2 representatives from the Planning Commission. You need to try to



PLANNING COMMISSION September 16, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

14.

15.
16.
17.

18.
19.
20.

get more new people involved. She said that Windham/Windsor Housing Trust will only take
over one of our 4 sites. You need a vision and it has to be based on the demographics you want.
Ryan Silvestri said there are incentives and deed amendments that can be put in place. We are
missing the middle and need to attract families.

Jill Appell said that the Windham/Windsor Trust already has other projects in the pipeline.
Noah Schmidt asked what West Windsor’s next steps are

Jill Appell said they are trying to work with Orange Lake to demolish the pool/fitness

building. Then get a developer and engineer to look at storm water, traffic and possible
exemption from ACT250. She said that the Town of Windsor donated $200,000 to their new
apartment complex.

Jill Appell said you need to understand who you want to attract and economic growth.

Noah Schmidt asked how West Windsor dealt with Not In My Backyard?

Jill Appell said there will always be some people against it, hopefully not too many and you hope
others will step forward to support it.

VIII. TOWN ZONING UPDATES WITH MARTHA HARRISON FROM MARC

[98)

ARG

>

10.
1.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

Martha Harrison said she has questions about some language in Section 430 - the Lakes District
regarding commercial use.

Terry Carter said the residents of the Lakes District do not want Commercial uses.

Martha Harrison said that if a commercial property changes hands, it will revert to residential.
Ryan Silvestri said there is a self-storage facility. He said there is no infrastructure at the

Lakes. What is existing, you can’t make non-conforming.

Terry Carter said what is there now, is grandfathered.

Ted Stryhas said that his property has been commercial for many years - 1960 or before.

It was decided to leave the Lakes District as it is in the existing Zoning Regulations and not to
change it.

Martha Harrison asked what is “unsuitable for development?”

Ryan Silvestri said that the Lake Shore Protection Act will take care of most of our issues. He
said that many of the older homes on the lake have old septic systems that leak into the lakes.
Terry Carter said to remove the sentence.

Martha Harrison said the current regulations do say 40,000 square feet, but new state laws state
that you can’t not allow ADUs.

Logan Nicoll said you can’t increase the degree of non-conformity.

Martha Harrison suggested that they look at RC-1 and RC-2 together. She said that RC-1 has
more conditional uses

Ryan Silvestri asked, when they did the Village, didn’t they also adopt those sections for the
Town. Why are we looking at this again?

Martha Harrison said the descriptions for RC-1 and RC-2 are almost identical, but the uses are
different.

Logan Nicoll said that at the time this was done, we felt that the RC at the time was too far out of
the Village and we created RC-2 to remove some of the uses. He said there had been discussion
about Dollar General and we don’t want that kind of development that far from the Village. We
want people to come to the Village. He said that the Village RC is primarily commercial and
Town RC-1 is mixed. RC-2 is mostly residential, but can have some commercial.



PLANNING COMMISSION September 16, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

17.

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

23.

24.

Martha Harrison said she will tweak the language. She asked board members to review the
spreadsheet she sent and make comments or suggestions.

Noah Schmidt asked about Conditional Uses

Logan Nicoll said that permits for projects with Conditional uses must go to the DRB

Noah Schmidt said doesn’t that open the door - they would win at the DRB

Jarrod Jowdy said that the DRB will put conditions on the permits.

Logan Nicoll said there is a misconception that it is similar to the Zoning Administrator. The
DRB is a quasi-judicial board and looks at all parts of the design. They do need a reason to deny
a permit. District Standards are important. If they do deny a permit, it can be appealed to the
State Environmental Court.

Martha Harrison said she will make definitions consistent to the Village definitions. She changed
the definition of dwelling unit. She said that Hotel is not a permitted use in the Town

districts. She asked about Light Industry and decibels.

Jarrod Jowdy said there is a definition for well-shield, but it does not appear in the district
descriptions or standards or subdivision regulations. It should be added.

IX. VILLAGE INFRASTRUCTURE: INCREASING PARKING SPACES IN
LUDLOW/ADDING ADA COMPLIANT PARKING WITH LOGAN NICOLL AND RON
TARBELL

bt

PN b

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.

Logan Nicoll had printed current parking location maps. It is suggested that the town lease more
space from the southern part of the Shaw’s parking lot. He will need to get a map of the parking
lines when the paving project is complete. He has some rough numbers for head in parking on
the south side of Main Street, but we can’t do it now because it would have to be paved
differently and engineered.

Judy Pullinen asked if the parcels bought out by FEMA could be used for parking

Logan Nicoll said they can’t create impervious surfaces there. He said the Timber Inn property
has limited uses.

Terry Carter said it has to have vegetation.

Logan Nicoll said FEMA didn’t even like the idea of creating a town nursery there

Judy Pullinen asked about the former Subway property

Ryan Silvestri said it has been purchased.

Jean Strong referred to the parking spaces by Dunkin’ Donuts and asked if the sign were
removed, will that allow for a pedestrian walkway

Terry Carter said that Brendan McNamara said it could possibly be done. She said we need to do
a traffic study

Logan Nicoll said we need an ADA Transition Plan in place by 2027. There will be a required
number of HC spaces with adjacent clear zones. There are no spots in the Village that meet

that. If the State did crack down, no town would be compliant. In Ludlow, there is no parking lot
for ADA, possibly the Fire Station park and ride.

Judy Pullinen asked if the Electric Light Department office has land.

Logan Nicoll said the Electric Light Department does own the land and parking.

Judy Pullinen asked how far it goes toward Sunoco

Logan Nicoll said to the fence



PLANNING COMMISSION September 16, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

15.
16.
17.

18.

19.
20.
21.

22.

Jean Strong said that the owner of the parcels where Brewfest and TPW are has put the property
up for sale. She said that may jeopardize the Municipal parking lot

Terry Carter said our next move is an engineering study. We need to try to get a grant.

Logan Nicoll said there is not a grant that he can think of that is open at this time. He can look
into the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) that provides funding for projects defined as
transportation alternatives.

Ryan Silvestri said the town needs to purchase land. There are 2 possible locations that would be
ideal - Ellison Block and Brewfest. This board may want to recommend to the Select Board to
purchase land. There is also the Pot Belly lot. If they put in a 4-story building, they could have
parking on the 1st level.

Jarrod Jowdy said those plans were submitted today.

Logan Nicoll said he can print more maps.

Ryan Silvestri asked if they could get one with the parking spots shown on it. There was a
parking study done in 2019.

Logan Nicoll said there is also the Better Connections Program. (The program provides
municipalities the opportunity to engage in master planning efforts that evaluate multi-modal
transportation options, future land use, and water quality improvements. The program provides
technical assistance through the duration of the grant to local communities to help achieve their
goals and plan for the future. He said that Ludlow did some, but not through Better
Connections. It has downtown transportation funds and is a source for parking projects. We can
look into this, but we need a champion in Montpelier.

X. NEXT MONTH’S AGENDA

1.

Terry Carter said that at next month’s meeting, Julie Hance and Preston Bristow from Chester and
Chuck Wise from Springfield will be attending the meeting

XI. OTHER BUSINESS - BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS (5 MINUTES)

1.

3.

Short Term Rental Registry

a) Terry Carter said that the Select Board meeting was cancelled for September. She said that
the Trustees voted to send it to the next meeting in October.

Food Truck Ordinance

a) This has been tabled indefinitely. There was a 500-person petition against it. Chris Callahan
said Food trucks should go to the DRB.

Neighborhood Development Areas

a) Terry Carter said that we met with 2 men from the State and they said we have to adopt all
sections and the Select Board was not on board. Jason Rasmussen and I agreed that now is
not the time for this. We will have to go through Regional. We have to look at Future Land
Use progress.

b) Logan Nicoll said the districts have existed and the State wants to expand Neighborhood
Development Areas, but the Senate is against it and doesn’t want to expand it. He said the
sunsets were extended.

¢) Ryan Silvestri said why even do this if NDA is dead in the water.

d) Terry Carter said that is what we decided - not to go forward.



PLANNING COMMISSION September 16, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

€) Ryan Silvestri asked who we can talk to at the State level.

f) Logan Nicoll said Chris Cochran. He added that it doesn’t open up the tax credits. He added
that DJs did get tax credits and anyone in the Village Center can get them. The NDA would
be anywhere within a % mile radius of the Village Center. You need to reach out to your
legislators. Alice Clarkson.

4. Electric Car Chargers

a) Terry Carter said she is trying to get a grant to get electric car chargers for Town employees -
2 in the Ludlow lot. This would be through Green Mountain Power. We need an estimate
from a licensed electrician. There would be a 5% match and they run about $26,000 each.

XII. ADJOURN

1. MOTION by Ryan Silvestri and seconded by Ted Stryhas to adjourn. Motion passed

unanimously.
2. Meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted

Lisha Klaiber
Terry Carter., Chairman Jean Strong
Judy Pullinen Ted Stryhas

Ryan Silvestri



